TONOPAH TOWN BOARD
MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 24, 2017
Tonopah Convention Center
301 Brougher Avenue, Tonopah, NV 89049

Tonopah Town Board Vice-Chairman Don Kaminski called the meeting to order on April 24,
2017 at 7:00 p.m. Also present were Clerk Jerry Elliston and Board Members Roni Link and
Mike Sain. Chairman Duane Downing was absent. Twelve others were in attendance. Vice-
Chairman Don Kaminski led in the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Town Board recessed to the Library Board of Trustees at 8:45 p.m. and reconvened as the
Town Board at 8:54 p.m.

The items were taken out of order to accommodate petitioners.

1.

(S

Public Comment

Tonopah resident Cindy Kaminski stated that she had a phone call from Jim Marsh in
regards to item 6 in which he voiced his concerns about the proposed ordinances.

Town Board Member’s/Department Manager’s/Nve County Commissioner’s Comments

None.

. Review and approval of minutes. in context. from the regular meeting held March 22,

2017.

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the minutes, in context, from the regular meeting held
March 22, 2017. Roni Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

Review and approval of mmutes, in context, from the budget workshop held March 31,
2017.

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the minutes, in context, from the budget workshop
held March 31, 2017. Roni Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

Review and approval of minutes, in context. from the regular meeting held April 12,
2017.

This item was tabled.

Discussion, deliberation and possible action to approve funding reguest for rehabilitating
the billboard owned by Tonopal Development Corporation Jocated at Montpomery Pass.

Bob Perchetti introduced himself and noted that he was the Convention Center Director
from 1968 until 1994. He explained that sometime in the 1970’s, he wanted to advertise
Tonopah as a central location on billboards. A few billboards were installed at different
locations. The one located at Montgomery Pass needs to be repaired and a new message
needs to be installed as the current one 1s faded. He pointed out that Schat’s Bakery from



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017
Page 2 0f 9

Bishop, California is willing to rent the backside of the billboard for $2,500 a year. He
added that the Chamber of Commerce and Tonopah Development Corporation used to
charge $400 a month.

Clerk Jerry Elliston asked who will perform the repair work. Vice-Chairman Don
Kaminski inquired whether the conservation crew could do it. Administrative Manager
Chris Mulkerns and Utility Manager Joe Westerlund stated that they will discuss this. Mr.
Perchetti noted that he was thinking about contacting Wade Barton to do the sign as he
does a good job. Tonopah resident Durk Pearson offered to use his land by Sodaville to
put up new billboards.

Bob Perchetti stressed that he i1s hoping to keep the cost down. Jerry Elliston asked
whether the expense will be paid for out of the 5/8ths room tax fund. Ms. Mulkerns stated
that it could be paid out of the mural fund. Don Kaminski suggested paying the repairs
out of mural fund and the sign out of the 5/8ths room tax fund. Mr. Westerlund added
that if the bucket truck is needed to repair the billboard, the repairs will have to wait until
July 1 when the new fiscal year starts. Mr. Perchetti clarified that he has extension
ladders that can be used for the repair.

Don Kaminski pointed out that he likes the slogan “middle of everywhere” which could
be used on the billboard. Mr. Perchetti suggested having solar lights in the future so that
the sign is visible at night. Board Member Mike Sain asked whether it paid off in the past
to have billboards to which Mr. Perchetti replied that he believes it did.

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the funding request up to, but not exceeding $5,000
for the rehabilitation of the billboard owned by the Tonopah Development Corporation
located at Montgomery Pass, the maintenance cost will come out of the mural fund and
the banner will be paid for out of the 5/8ths room tax fund. Mike Sain seconded. No
further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

6. Presentation by Nye County Planning Department on the following topics:

a) Shooting Competition on County Land near Tonopah Amrport

Darrell Lacy, Planning Department Director, introduced himself and explained that he
has been approached to help with the organization of a shooting competition to be
held in Tonopah. He stressed that he is working with the Sheriff Department. As it is
difficult to have permits approved on BLM land, the competition will take place on
Nye County land by the airport. He noted that they are still working out details. The
event will take place in August and he is hoping to draw additional visitors to
Tonopah with this competition. Clerk Jerry Elliston pointed out that it is a three-day
event. Mr. Lacy added that 1f the event works well, it will turn into an annual event.
Vice-Chairman Don Kaminski noted that he would like to see what kind of backstop
will be used.



Tonopah Town Beard Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 3 of 9

b)

Jerry Elliston asked what the Town has to do with the event. Mr. Lacy stated that he
is only asking for suggestions from the Town. Tonopah resident Durk Pearson stated
that he believes it is a great idea and great publicity for the Town. He suggested
sending flyers out to advertise it. Tonopah resident Cindy Kaminski noted that she is
surprised that the Sheriff is not presenting this event and added that she believes other
events should be planned for the same weekend to keep visitors busy. She stressed
that she would like to get the contact information for the organizer. Mr. Kaminski
suggested having vendors. Chris Mulkerns noted that the Town will be hosting the
Starry Nights Arts Festival on the same weekend. Mr. Lacy asked if there are mobile
food vendors which Deputy Town Clerk Kat Galli confirmed. Mr. Kaminski
suggested the group should apply for a 5/8ths Room Tax Grant to advertise the event.
Ms. Mulkerns noted that staff will supply Mr. Lacy with all necessary information.

Proposed Mobile Home Ordinance to comply with NRS 278.02095

Darrell Lacy stated that the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) require this ordinance
and it was brought to the attention of the department that Nye County does not have
an ordinance regarding this matter. He noted that the NRS says a mobile home can
only be up to 6 years old when installed. Tonopah resident Durk Pearson stressed that
this is optional for counties with a population under 45,000. Mr. Lacy stressed that if
Nye County does not have their own regulation, then the 6-year rule applies. He
added that there has to be some kind of an ordinance and that he wrote the draft to
where the Town Board can set their own standards for Tonopah.

Don Kaminski asked what the definition of a mobile home was. Mr. Lacy clarified
that a mobile home is the same as a manufactured home. He emphasized that this
regulation does not apply for a mobile home park. Board Member Mike Sain inquired
whether this regulation would apply to ranches as well. Mr. Lacy explained that it is
different zoning. He stressed that the County would like to give flexibility to the
Towns and that the majority of the regulations apply to Pahrump. Tonopah resident
Cindy Kaminski asked if the person wanting to install a mobile home would have to
go before the BOCC after the Town Board to which Mr. Lacy replied that after the
Town Board approves an installation, it will go to the Planning Department that
permits it. Jerry Elliston inquired whether this will have to be decided on a case by
case basis. Mr. Lacy stated that the Town Board can either approve it on a case by
case basis or set a certain standard. Chris Mulkerns clarified that the process currently
is that Town staff refers customers to the NRS and Planning Department before
letting them hook up utilities.

Durk Pearson asked whether item 4 was deleted as it is in red. Mr. Lacy clarified that
everything in red and blue was added. He noted that this proposed ordinance will go
before the BOCC. Mr. Pearson stated that he thinks this should not apply to all of Nye
County as people cannot afford to build houses in Tonopah because they cannot
afford to pay a contractor. He emphasized that any manufactured home from the last
30 years is way better quality and easier to heat than an older house with newspaper
for insulation. He stressed that there are a lot of people in Tonopah who make less



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 4 of 9

than most people in the U.S. He suggested to only apply this ordinance in Pahrump to
keep things affordable and to fill the properties that are only 25 foot wide. He pointed
out that for a Town to work, you have to have affordable housing for all levels of
income. Darrell Lacy stressed that the way the NRS is written, if the proposed
ordinance was only for Pahrump, the NRS would apply to the rest of Nye County. He
is trying to give all Towns flexibility.

Mr, Lacy noted that who wrote the ordinance was Jerry Shelty. Tonopah resident
Bruce Jabbour stressed that he knows Mr. Shelty who owns a manufactured home
company in Pahrump. He noted that if this passed, any manufactured home company
would benefit from this. Mr. Jabbour emphasized that this ordinance is cost
prohibitive as Tonopah residents would have to pay at least $58,000 for a new
manufactured home, at least $8,000 to transport that home to Tonopah, and about
$10,000 to have it set up. It would cost about $76,000 for a newer home; this would
not even include the land. Lower income residents would not be able to afford
housing and would not be able to live in Tonopah. Therefore, this ordinance does not
make sense for Tonopah. Mr. Lacy pointed out that even in Palrump, one is allowed
to install homes up to 20 years old. He added that Mr. Sheltie attended a lot of the
meetings in Pahrump and informed the Department that most homes built after 1995
are built to a better standard.

Mr. Jabbour stressed that comparing Tonopah to another community which is not like
Tonopah does not make sense. He emphasized that Tonopah 1s unique. Ramsey Cline
added that the ordinance the way it is written applies minimum requirements to all
Towns. He questioned why it does not simply say the standards do not apply to all
Towns. Mr. Lacy stressed that this is why the Town Board will be given the ability to
decide on a case by case basis.

Don Kaminski asked what the process is to submit changes. Mr. Lacy clarified that
changes should be sent to the planning department in writing so they can revise the
draft. He stressed that he would like to see some vacant homes filled again; the Town
could grant a blanket variance. He noted that the Town of Pahrump said the older
homes have to be at least painted before they can be installed. Jerry Elliston stated
that he sees the value in this.

Tonopah resident Cindy Kaminski stressed that Tonopah is a historic town and that
there are a lot of places where this ordinance would hinder development as the lots
are too small and a lot of houses are less than 1,150 square feet. She emphasized that
Tonopah is different from Pahrump. She added that a letter was sent i 2007
informing all owners of manufactured homes about the NRS. Don Kaminski
suggested having a workshop to get community input on this matter. He noted that
the Board could handle this on a case-by-case basis.

Joe Westerlund asked if a new staff member will be hired for the Tonopah Planning
Department. Mr. Lacy noted that there is the possibility to video conference from the
Administration Department.



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 50f9

Durk Pearson read a letter from Trish Rippie into the record (see backup).

Don Kaminski proposed scheduling a workshop to get public involved and give
comments to Mr. Lacy.

Proposed Special Use Permit Ordinance

Darrell Lacy explained that having special use permits does not mean that someone
cannot do something, it just means they need to come before the Board of County
Commissioners (BOCC). Don Kaminski asked if Nye County will allow the Town to
do variances on this matter as well. Mr. Lacy stated that a special use permit is a case-
by-case decision; if the town had comments, the county would consider it. Tonopah
resident Cindy Kaminski pointed out that the BOCC has the ultimate decision and
does not have to listen to what the Town Board says.

Joe Westerlund asked what the permit fee is. Mr. Lacy replied that it costs $350.00
plus fees to pay for the cost of publications, etc.

Durk Pearson referred to Section “k” and pointed out that this will apply to all
businesses in Tonopah. Tonopah resident John MeCormick emphasized that the cost
for construction will not just be the $350 permit fee, but inspector fees, delays due to
notices, etc. Mr. Lacy stressed that this will only be the case if a project is considered
a special use project. He added that he believes the parameters have to be
reconsidered if Tonopah has so many new businesses with 20 employees and over
100 vehicle trips. Mr. McCormick pointed out that the Mizpah Hotel owners Fred and
Nancy Cline have invested millions of dollars into the hotel with little return and
should not be delayed more or pay more. Mr. Pearson added that he wants to continue
investing in the Town.

Tonopah resident Ramsey Cline stated that regulating what someone can do on their
own property is against his beliefs. Mr. Lacy replied that he would like feedback from
the Town and residents where to draw the line when to require a special use permit.
Mr. Chine suggested only requiring it for public and federal {and.

Chris Mulkerns asked if this will be on the BOCC agenda which Mr. Lacy confirmed.
He added that the best opportunity to make changes is before.

Durk Pearson read a letter from Trish Rippie into the record (see backup).

Tonopah resident Bill Bunting questioned construction on historic buildings. He
explained that the plan is to refurbish the Belvada and asked where this project would
fall. Mr. Lacy noted that the main focus of the ordinance was on new construction
and that the language needs to be changed so that it only applies to new buildings.



Tanopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017
Page 60f 9

8. Discussion. deliberation and possible action to authorize the request of 5/8ths Room Tax
Grant Funds in the amount of $1.779.40 from Jim Butler Days Armwrestling to advertise
the 2017 Nevada State Pro-Arm.

Event organizer Joe Westerlund noted that he is requesting $1,779.40 to advertise the
event. He pointed out that he attached receipts with his request, but is aware that he will
not get reimbursed until after the event due to the new regulations. He explained that the
funds will be used for radio advertising and that everything that is printed or t-shirts will
have Tonopah written on it. Don Kaminski emphasized that the arm-wrestling is a big
event and has a big draw for outside visitors.

Roni Link motioned to authorize the request of 5/8ths Room Tax Grant Funds in the
amount 0of $1,779.40 for the Jim Butler Days Armwrestling to advertise the 2017 Nevada
State Pro-Arm. Jerry Elliston seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

9. Discussion, deliberation and possible action to approve grant matching expenditure for a
Tourism Marketing Grant Application through TravelNevada.

Deputy Town Clerk Kat Galli showed this year’s tourism guide and explained that this is
the second year the Town of Tonopah is advertising in the guide. She stated that the
guide is printed 250,000 times and distributed to everyone who requests this from
TravelNevada, every advertiser in the State of Nevada, and at every tourism convention.
She stressed that she believes it is money well spent. This year’s ad is located under the
annual events list so everyone can see Tonopah’s ad. She added that Tonopah’s efforts to
promote stargazing are in line with the State’s efforts to advertise the same. She noted
that the Town will hopefully establish a stargazing site soon.

Ms. Galli noted that the ad costs $3,850 and if the grant is received, the Town will only
pay 50% of the cost. She pointed out that the Town has received grant funding for this ad
the last two years and she stressed that she is confident that the Town will received the
funding again. Don Kaminski asked if the Town’s cost would be paid out of the 5/8ths
room tax fund which Ms. Galli confirmed. Chris Mulkerns suggested approving the full
amount in case the grant is not awarded. Ms. Galli clarified that the expense will be paid
out of the following fiscal year. Due to deadlines, she has to apply for the grant during
the first grant cycle. Mr. Kaminski stated that he believes the advertising is worth it even
if the Town does not receive grant funding. He added that Tonopah needs to get their
name out,

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the grant matching expenditure in the amount of
$3,850.00 for the Tourism Marketing Grant Application through TravelNevada. Roni
Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 7 0f 9

10. Discussion, deliberation and possible action on Department Staff Reports:

a)

b)

d)

Town Administration: Town Collections for the Month of March 2017

Chris Mulkerns stated that the Town and TPU office moved into the new office. She
emphasized that staff has received nothing but good comments from customers. Roni
Link asked if Mr. Westerlund will be on Main Street as well. Ms. Mulkerns clarified
that his office will remain at the old office location.

Convention Center: Usage for the Month of March 2017

Chris Mulkerns explained that she and Mr. Westerlund walked the Convention Center
with an audio/visual company so they could get a proposal. She noted that she would
like to have approval of the installation on the next agenda for Board review. She
pointed out that it will cost about $112,000, but everything would be taken care of.
She noted that the money is available. Don Kaminski asked if this proposal includes
audio/visual in all rooms which Ms. Mulkerns confirmed.

Parks: Clean-up of parks. removing trees. sidewalk repair at
Barsanti Park

Joe Westerlund noted that he took Tell Sallee of NV Energy to Jim Butler Park to see
how to move the power line to place the playground equipment in compliance with
POOL/PACT regulation. He stated that one tree will have to be cut down and that a
new power box and LED light will have to be installed. The light will be replaced by
NV Energy.

Mr. Westerlund stated that one tree at Harvey Park and one tree at Barsanti Park were
removed. The sidewalk at Barsant1 Park was replaced.

Pool: Preparing for season

Chris Mulkerns pointed out that the advertising for the lifeguard position is in the
newspaper and that staff can hopefully conduct interviews soon. She added that all
repairs were completed at the pool.

Joe Friel Sports Complex:Repair of fence, gopher control
Joe Westerlund stated that the poles that were blown over by the wind were replaced.
Some more supporting will be conducted. He added that the batting cage was repaired

by the baseball coaches.

Tonopah Historic Mining Park: Paimnting of Visitor Center, roof repair

Joe Westerlund stated that the Mining Park visitor center was painted on the inside
per request of the Foundation. He explained that it is a better color to display exhibits.



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 80f9

g)

h)

He added that the crow’s nest was fixed. One building was unstable, but was
stabilized by the maintenance crew.

Events: Great Tonopah Muckout — Town Cleanup Day
April 29, 2017
Open House/Park Dedication/BBQ postponed until the
summer

Tonopah Public Utilities: Svstem update

Joe Westerlund explained that the construction crew at the Sundowner Motel hit a
main line on Easter weekend. He pointed out that they were working without calling
811 before they began work. Mr. Westerlund had to take samples to Reno.

Mr. Westerlund noted that the chlorine tank was repaired and that one side of the
airport was flushed. The jetter truck was not fixed properly and will be taken back for
repairs. He added that a lot of sewer line replacements and water leaks occurred in the
past month.

Mr. Westerlund stated that the bid for the sewer slip line went out. He and Ms.
Mulkerns will have a walkthrough with NDOT. Chris Mulkemns added that the
advertising will run for three weeks with the deadline being May 11", The bids will
be opened publicly that day. The award of the bid can take place at the May 24
meeting. Don Kaminski asked how long the project will take. Ms. Mulkerns clarified
that it will only take two months and will be paid for out of the current and the
following fiscal year. '

11. Correspondence

Northern Nye County Hospital District Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda, April 20,

2017

Beatty Town Advisory Board Meeting Agenda, April 24, 2017

Nye County Board of County Commissioners Meeting Summary, April 18, 2017
Room Tax Collection for the Month of March 2017

Letter from No to Abuse re: Foster Care Awareness Day, April 7, 2017

Deputy Town Clerk Kat Galli referred to the letter about the foster care awareness day
and noted that an information expo and a dinner will be held on May 6™, She encouraged,
everyone to attend even if they are not interested in becoming a foster parent. Chris
Mulkerns added that staff was thinking of donating a Polaris tour and a free family swim
pass for the raffle for this event.



Tonopah Town Board Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017
Page 9 of 9

12. Approval of vouchers for payment

The Board reviewed and signed the vouchers. Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the
vouchers as presented for payment. Roni Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion
carried 4-0.

13. Public Comment

Roni Link stated that she spoke with a physician in Pahrump if he would be interested in
coming to Tonopah. This physician may be interested and also knows three additional
physicians who would be interested in coming to Tonopah. She added that REMSA
wants to come to Tonopah. She pointed out that she developed a power point presentation
as she wants an emergency room and fully operational hospital.

Cindy Kaminski encouraged everyone to read the NRS that were brought up under item
6.

14. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 9:28 p.m.

Minutes trangcribed by: Approved:
Al DL

K?‘/ Galli,geputy Town Clerk Duane Downing, ChatPman

Don Kaminski, Vice-Chairman

Ort——, Z,) 2

Jgfry W. Elliston, Clerk _

Rhonda S. Link, Member

Michael Sain, Member






TONOPAH LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 24, 2017
Tonopah Convention Center
301 Brougher Avenue, Tonopah, NV §9049

Tonopah Library Board of Trustees Chairman Don Kaminski called the meeting to order on
April 24, 2017 at 8:45 p.m. Also present were Vice-Chairman Mike Sain, Clerk Roni Link, and
Trustee Jerry Elliston. Trustee Duane Downing was absent. Twelve others were in attendance.

L.

LUs]

Public Comment

Noune,

Library Board Member’s/Department Manager’s Comments

None.

. Review and approval of minutes. in context, from the regular mecting held March 22,

2017.

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the minutes, in context, from the regular meeting
held March 22, 2017. Roni Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

Review and approval of minutes. in context, from the budget workshop held March
31.2017.

Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the minutes, in context, from the budget workshop
held March 31, 2017. Mike Sain seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.

Review and approval of minutes, in context. from the regular meeting held April 12,
2017.

This item was tabled.

Discussion, deliberation and possible action to apply for a solar energy grant through
EBSCO Solar.

Administrative Manager Chris Mulkerns explained that Acting Librarian Dianne
Ryals has the application ready. Ms. Mulkerns noted that she only had a few changes
such as board member terms and possible regulations through the planning
departient. She added that there may be restrictions through Cultural Affairs. Ms.
Mulkerns emphasized that Ms. Ryals did a spectacular job with the application. Vice-
Chairman Mike Sain asked if the Library District has to match anything. Ms.
Mulkerns rephied that as far as she knows, there 1s no match necessary.

Jerry Elliston motioned to apply for a solar energy grant through EBSCO Solar. Roni
Link seconded. No further discussion. Motion carried 4-0.



Tonopah Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
April 24, 2017

Page 2 of 2

7.

10.

11.

Discussion. deliberation and possible action regarding Library Staff Reports:

a) Library: Revenues/Fines, Cards
b) Historic Library: Rental/Usage

No reports or comments.

Correspondence

None.

Approval of vouchers for payment

The Board reviewed and signed the vouchers. Jerry Elliston motioned to approve the
vouchers as presented for payment. Roni Link seconded. No further discussion.
Motion carried 4-0.

Public Comment

None.

Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m.

Minutes trag;cribed b’%z Approved:

ISA Galli(/ﬁeputy Town Clerk Don Kaminski, Chairman

Michael Sain, Vice-Chairman

Rhonda S. Li 3

Do

Duane Downing, T@tee

OA—*—nlJ im

\Iérry E(Histon, Trustee




